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ROWE P.:

Jamaica has a surplus of male férm“workers,
Agricultural sectors in U.S.... and anada have seasonal
shortage of farmnworkersa. Long-standing arrangoements exist
betveen Jamaica and its two giant northern neighbours where-
by Jamaican farm-workers £ill these seasonal veids. s will
appear more fuliy in this judgment, large sunms of money
are accumulated in these farmwworkers"progfammes from which
in the psriod l981~1988 huge sums ware systematically'with-
drawn in fraudulent circumstances. The appellant, a former

Cabingt Miniswer in Jamaica, with portfolio responsibility



for the Ministry of Labour, in the years 1900-1989 was
convicted after a protracted trial, by His Honour
Mr. Donald McIntosh, Resident Magistrate for Kingston on

one count of conspirvacy to defraud, on oae count of

-

receiving knowing thaz the property was obtained in circum-
stances amounting to a misdemeanour and on five counts

of receliving propecty knowing it to have begen obltained in
circumstances amounting to felony. On his appeal to this
Court against his convictions and sentences, we found no
merit in the-SmeiSSiOHSWhich related to cecnvictions, but
reduced the sentences ﬁn the receiving counts to three
years impriscnment, as in passing five year terms of impyi-
sonment on eachtﬁ ;hosebQuhtsF_the learned Residgnﬁ 
Hagistrate had exceeded hiS'statutéry jufis&ictiéﬁ'én
gsentencing. We set out herein the reasons which impelled

ug to dismiss the appeals against cénviciion.

[
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By .sgreement with the United States Sugar Corpora=~
tion, & number of Znglish speaking Caribbean territories,
including Jamaica, arrange fox their nationals to partici-
pate in seascnal agticﬁltuxal-work inrﬁhelﬂoﬂﬁh, i tri-
partite agreement Is concluded in respect of each worker
which records the obligations of the employer, of the agent
of the participating Goverrment and of the farm-worker.

To faciliiate the smooth co-ordination of the farm-work
programae in the U.5.4. {he:einafter "the U.8.4, programme”)
an QOrganization known as the West Indies Central Labour
Organization (W.I.C.L.C.) was formed with its chief
executive called the Chief:Liaison Officer. The policym
naking arm of Wei.C.L.C. was the Regional Labour Board on
which Jamaica, by virtue of a Heads of Government resolu-
tion in 1962, hald permanent chairmanship. Three of che

other five members were from Jawmzica and the remaining
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two from the eastern Caribbean. Meetings of the Regicnal

Labour Board are held in Jamaica in five consecutive years

and in the sixch year in one of the other participating

territosies.,

Under the tri-partite agreument the okligations of the
employsr included the duty to deduct a fixed percentage or
each worker's gross wages to be used by the Chief L:iaison
Ufficer te effect Insurance on behali of the workers and for
extra-ordinary emcrgency services zlsc on behalf of the said
workers. Further the employérs were landated to deduct some
23% of each Jamaican worker's gross wages for transmission to
Jamaica through W.I.C.L.0. W¥hen those deductions reached
Jamaica an amount eguivalent te 2% of the gross wages of
each worker was deducted as a cess and transmitted foom
Jamaica to W.I,C.L.0, Lo form “he operating fund of that
Organization. This indirect method of accounting was
nece#sary to conform with the United States law whnich pro-.
hibited deductions frow workers' wages for the purposes of
adninistering the programme. In 1267 the empleoyers in U.S.4.
agreed to contribute 1% of each employse's gross wages to
W.I.C.L.C. Erom this 1% emplcoyer contribution the Hatuional

Insurance S&cheme payments for Jamaican workers was made and

valances were lodged fto a
Farm-workers in the

in the Canadian programme

special bank accouat in Hashington.
U.S.4. programme as well as those

were insured against accident and

illness with an insurance Company in New York through the
agency of W.I,C.LQG, in Wasuaington. Premiums were paid
.monthly and the insursnce payments covered sick henefits,
including daily benefits, medical, hospital and drugs charges
At the end of each po;icy vear, the Insurgncc Compary refunded

the difference between the tolal premiwms received and their

duwsburvawents which included U.8. tazxes, and thelr management



fees. This refund was called the Retroactive Rate Credit.
That portion which related to the U.S.A. programme was
retained in Washington while that for the Canadian programme
wag either sent to the Ministry of Labour in Jamaica or to
the Chief Liaison Officer in Canada.

The Caradian Farm-work Programne was established in
1956 with a Memorandum of Understanding between the Government
of Canada and the Government of Jamaica signed on the one
hand Ly the ilinister of Employment and Immigration and on the
other hand by the Minister of Lébour, Jamaica to which was
annexed Cperational Uuidelines. These Guidelines'reqﬁired
the Jamaican Government Lo maké all the necessary arrange-
ments for the recruitment of the farm-workers and for the
appointment and maintenance of & Liaison Service in Canada.
A third relevant document was the tri-partite agreement
between the Canadian employer, the farm labourer and the -
Government of Jamaica through its duly elected agenc. An
important clause of this agreement was *hat the employer-
would deduct on each pay-day a fixed percentage of the gross
wages of sach worker and remit the same to the Government's
agent. ODuring the life of the Canadian programme the fixed
deduction moved from 20% to 25%. The Governmént'agent'
retained 5% of the gross wages of ecach worker as an Upera-
tional Cess, that is to say for the exponses of the Liaison
$ervice, and forwarded the other 20% to Jamaica for the
benefit of the worker. |

At the Jamaican level the Canadian programme came under
the execurive control of a Mahagement Committee. This
Committee was established by Cébinet aﬁé its members were 
appoinied by Cabinet on the recoﬁmehdation of the Minister

of Labour after consultation wiih interested parties
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including the Trade Uniecns. Its Chairman was the Permanent



Secretary in the Ministry of labour and it funchloned as
the pol;cy—maxlng arm of the Canaolan programma untll 1981.
Thereafter no further meetlnrc of the Committee were held
and its role was usurped by the Minister of Labour and the
Permancnt Secre‘tax‘y,

At its inception the accounts of the Canadian
programmme*wére kept 2t the Jamaican High Commission inr
Ottawa and were under the control of Lhe Minister cf Foreign
affairs. In l?éi"for reasons which will become apparent
léter, those accounts were transferred from ihe High
Commission in Ottawa tc the Liaison Service in Toronto.
Thereafter these accounts vere never audéited until 19&9,

%W.I.C.L.0. maintained its own account at Riggs
National Bank inlwashington, Funds.intended for the
Government of Jamaica were lodged to the Government's account
at the Bank of Hova Scotiap Washington while moneys intenéed
for other parL¢c1pat1ng territories were lodged to thelr
several accounts. BEe tween 1944 and 1543, the Auditor
General of Jamaica audited W.I.C.L.O.'s accouhtsu Subsequéﬁt
'd&its were done by Price Waterhouse,

Cons;dérabl credit balances weag in the ¥Washington
qCCOhnta ©f W.X.C.L.C, and in the Canadian accounts oflthe
Lialson Service. On tha case presented Ly the Crcwn, the
appellant from his lefty position as Minister of Labour
corruptly in&uced his venal Fermanent Secretary to join with
him in a scheme to systeﬁatiéally mulet these accounts and
succeeded in eight yeérs 10 render the farm-woraeré‘accounts
the poorer by hundze&SOf thousands of dollﬁrs of hard currency.
When the frauds were dlscovere& Frobyn aitken {hereinafter
Litken) who held the Offlce of Permanent o€Cle+dry3 Ministry
cf Labour from January 3, 1978 to Qctober 29, 1387 determlned

to co-operate with the pPolice and to tell all he knew. He was



charged Wlth consplrlng w1th the aapellant and othéro to
defraud the Government of Jamaica of funﬁg held 1n the twe .
rarm-work Qrogrammes° He pleaded gu1lty, was_sentenceé to a
term of nine months imprisonment and was an essential witness
at the trial of the appellant against whom threersets of
charges were prefeired in the sevgn—count.ﬁﬁdictment,

it is convénient to indicate the charges brought against
the sppellant at this stage. Couni_l alleged fhaﬁ betweén
June 1, 1981 and August 11, 1%8% the appellant cqﬁspired with
Aitken, Hectex's River Fai} Ltéd andé othé:éito def%aud the
Government of Jamaica by frauﬁulentiy.utilizing funds held by
the Jamaica Liaisoﬁ.Service and tbe‘Weét Indies Central
Labour Ofganization cn behalf of thé said Government ¢f Jamaica
for their own benefits or purposes. Count 2 alleged.that>the
appellant “ece;veﬁ without lawful excuse the sum of 7_.
U.S. $50,000.00 knowing tnat it had been obualned in such
circumstances that if the act had been committed ln Jamalca,
the person comitﬁing it would have been guilty of a misde-
méénour, Counts 3 - 7 allegéd the receipit by the :appeliant
of various sums of money on stated dates Linowing.in each case
that the money had been obtained in such circumétances that
if the act had been done in Jamaica, the person commitiing
it would have been guilty of a feiony, .‘ |

The appellant relied on his right of silence during
the trial and apart from pléading not gﬁilty, was mﬁte.through—
out. Defence CZcunsel made a no«case-submission at the end of
the prosecution"é case, intimating then, that he wouid @ot.in
any event be calllng any evidence for the def ence. He kept
that promise. ¢mportani and ;01 ths jurisdiction novel
points of law were argued for the defence at t;la; anc‘again

before us.



Before detailing Fhe evidence in the case, which as we
have saidraboveF came only from the prosecution,'wé antici-
pate. ourselves by referring to a finding of the learned
Resident Magistrate on the credit-worthiness of Aitken when

he said:

w

in observing his demeanour the court
found that this was a man - a former
Permanenit Secretary, a learned man,
now a seli-confessed thief, trying

- vainly to hang unto whatever shreds
of dignity he could muster as he
stood alonec day after day in the
witness box.,

He stood bravely against those who
feel that a thief should . not give
evidence against his partner in
crime. He was a man alone, baring
his soul, trying to atone for his
own misdeed”. -

Earlier the trial Magistrate had said of hitken:

"True the witness Aitken made mistakes.
‘There were errors of memory, rather
than any deliberate attempt to mis-
lead the ' court. He could not xecall
exact dates on which incidents toock
-place over a period of some eight
years starting in 1981. But the
documerits speak for themselves®.

We will now summarize the evidence given by Ritken,'which,
having been accepted by the tribunal of fact as being true,
we will treat as facts found in the case.

as Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Labour, Ahitken
was the designated Accounting Officer for that Ministry by
the Ministe: of Finance under the provisions of Section 16
of the Financial Administration and Audit Act (F.A.A. Act).
instructions for the guidance of public officers to provide a
sound basis for proper administration of public moneys .were
issued by the Minister in accordance with Section 17(1) of

the &ct on April 20, 1877. "Officer” is defined in the



F.A.A, Act to mean "any person in the employ of the Govern-

ment”, and "public moneys" is defined to includes:

~#{ay = revenue;
“{b}.  any trust or other moneys
held. whether temporarily
or ctherwise, by an officer
in his official capacity
either alone oxr jointly
with any other person
whether an officer or noti".
These definitions, are with slight modifications repeated in
the 1977 Instructions to Accounting Officers in which too the
term "Accounting Officexr" is defined to be:
"Accounting Officer is any person
designated by the Minister pur-
suant. to section 16 of the Act
and charged with the duty of
accounting for expenditure on
any service in respect of which

moneys have been appropriated
under Law ".

-

These instructions can nei;her-extend nox reétrict the meaning
of Accounting Officer as defined in the F.A.A. Act.

The appéllant, said hitkeng when he assumed portfolio
responsibility for the Ministry of Labour took & keen interest
in the farm-worlt programmes. After the appellent's visit to
Canada in about May 1981;.he objecced very'Strohgly to the
Canadian funds being administered by the Jamaican High
Comnission in Ottawa under the azuspices of the Ministry of
Foreign Affairs and directed their transfer o Toronto away
from the Bigh Commission and into the Liaison Service within
the purview of his Ministry. He objected to meetings of the
Management Committeé as he felt that the matters with which
the Committee dealt could be more appropriately dealt with by
himself. - He discarded the policy decision as to the rolelof
the Management Committee as he refused to be fettered by the

decisions cf the Cabinet of a former Government. At a 1981



neeting of the Management Committee decisions were taken
to transfer the Canadian funds to Toronto and to appoint
a Chief Liaison Officer in Canada. Ronan Critchlow, a

Director of Manpower in the Labour Ministry was selected

i}

for the Chief Liaison Cfficer's positicn and he was despatched
o Canada with writien instfuctions from Attken in his
capacity as Permanent Secretary and Chairman of the Manage-
ment Committee to effect iransfer of the funds, to purchase
two dwelling-~-houses, onc for his official use and the other
for use by visiting dignitaries'and genérally to establish

the Liaison Service on this upgraded basis.

At approximately the sane tiﬁe as Critchlow wés being
prepared for Canada, the second Qrong of the attack was
launched against the U.S8.A4. programme. The appellant told
Altien that he bad need for the expenditure of an amount
of U.S. $50,000.00 in and around the Ministry and that
Aitken should request these funds from W.1.C.L.C. in
Washington. &itken telephoned Haiold Edwards, the Chief
Liaison Officer in Washington and told him of the appellant's
reguest. GOdwaids agled for an authorication letter and Aitken,

writing o the official necte-paper of the Ministry cof Labour

ané Employment on October 1%, 1981 addressed the Chief Liaison
fficer thus:

‘

"L am confirming our recent telsphone
conversation, in which I informed

you that it has been decided Lo draw
down an amount not exceeding Pifiy
Thousand Dollars (U.8. $50,3800; fiom
the amount of the Employers' con-
tribution Lo the social welfare of
the farm-~woriers for i%80. Ais you
know, i shall be meeting with tLhe
Minister in Orlande on or about the
22nd Cctober. It would be con-
venient <o hand over i{he amounti ‘then.
This means that, in addition ¢ whe
amount wihich you were asked to lodge
on account purchase of motor caxr,
there would be a total draw down from
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“this account of Fifty Seven Thousand
Thousand Five hundred dollars
{(U.3. $87,500)"

This memorandum was signed:
"P. %Y. Ritken

Pe:manen: Secreiacy ana
Chairman, Regicnal Labour Loard®.

Lefora *the receipt of this letter, Edwards acted upon
tiue telephone requesi of Aitken. He wrote to-Aithen on
Cctooer 21, 1981, forwarding the cheague requested,. Aithen
testified that he received the cheque threcugh the post in
Jamaica, while Edwards spoke of handing him the chegue in
OilandO; U.8.5. Altken ¢ version is supporcable Dj a letter
of Edwards éated chober 21, 19381 in whlch Edwards wriuing

Lo arlken as “Permanent Secrezary, Minist iy of Labour,

Jamaica", said:

"Please .efer to your telephone request .
cf October 14 and find herewith this
Cryanization's chegue for £3(.000 in
your favour
This amounti is a portion of the 1%
contribution being held in this office
before transmission to Jamaica on
behalf of Jamaicar workers.

Please refer te my letier of

Seprenber 25 and let ne have confirma-
tion in regard 4o your previous telephone
request for payment ¢f $7,500 from the
same fund to the bank in Belgium®.

Hdaving received. this chegue for U.S. $50,000.00 made
payatile Lo ihe Permanent Secretary, MHinistry of Labour, Aitken
apprised tiie appellan:t of the fact and that Altken was about
to lodge cheque to the Ministry's account. "Hold it”, said
the appellant,. “because to send this cheque through the
system would set off alarm bells®., Aiiken held the cheque.

Hext the appellant told Aiiken that he svill wanted
U.8. $50,0060,00 in cash and that sitken should proceed to

Washington and get the wmoney. Aitken again telephoned Edwards

who agreed to receive Zitken in Hashington. At the meeting



in HWashington Aitken swore that he told Edwards his problen,
that he was under pressure tc get this much money in cash.
Again Ddwards reguested writien acthority and aitken obliged.
He wrove:

"L will be grateful if you will issue

an amount of $553,00¢ U.5H. from the

1% Cess in faveur of the Social

Vielfare for Parm wWowrkexs.

T would like this amount to ke paid

to me in three separate cheques as
follows:

$53,000.00

o

P
<

3,004

_2.000.00
$55,6G90.00

These payments together wiih tha two
previous paymenis of $54,C00C and
$5,70¢ will bring the total with-
drawn the accecunt to $112,500.0G0%.

He signed it:

ti

P. ¥W. Aitken
Permanenl Secretary and
Chairman, Regicnal Labour Board”.

It is to be obseyved that the figure of $5:700.00 was written
in ervor fos §7,0U

(PR L]

The chegueg regees led weve wndoubtedly issued in Aitken’s
name and were negovioted at‘Riggs Waiional Dank the same - day,
with Aitken receiving $506,000.00 in cash and two drafis for
the smaller chegues. The extra $5,0600.00 was demahdéd and
received upon Aitken's sole initiative. Aitken said hé
returned to Jamaica with the cash, went to the appellant's
office, handed him the money with an introductory sentence
such as: "This is what you askeC me for., Here it is®. The
appellant accep.ed the prof fered sums with the laconic

respons=; "Thaniz you®.
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At the end of Hovember 1981, Aitken and the appellant
went to Canada together. Aitken tock with him the cheqgue
for U.s. $50,000.00 received'earliefffroﬁ Edwards of
1.1.C.L.0. on the instructions of the appellant, for the
purpose of encashment in Canada through one of the Toronto
Liaison Service Accounts as this could be achieved, said the
appellant, “without setting off alarm bells". In furtherance
of this scheme Aiiken gave ihe cheque in Toronvo to Critchlow
with instructicns to obtain cash therefor as guickly as
possible as the appellant’s stay in Canada would be a short
one. The Bank Manager refused to give cash for a Government
chegue which in his view ocught to be lodged L9 ah account.
Critchlow reported to the appellant and Aitken., Aitken
demanded that Critchlow cbey his earlier instructions. The
appellant gave the wéighL of his authority t¢ the directive
by instructing Critchlow that if the Bank Manager refused to
carry out the instructions which he had been given to change
the cheque Critchlow should remove the Liaison Servicer
accounts from that bank_immediatelyfand f£in¢ ancther bank

which would be more co-operative. Critchicw who denanded

o]

and racsived writlten .instructions for thie assignment,
returned to che bank and obtained cashier’s drafts for

U.8., $4GKOGG,¢O and U.5. $10,000.00 in cash which he handed
to Altken who in turn gave it o the appellant at Miami
salirport. ) When, however, aitken told the appellant that he
had received the cashier's drafts and the cash in exchange
for the U.5. $50,000.00 cheque he responded:

"What I told yocu, it would work,
hold on to it*®,
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On December 7, 1981 Aitken opened a current account in
in his own name at Credit Suisse Bank in Miami. Aitken
déscribed how this came about. The appellant told him that
he, the appellant, wanted easier access to the Canadian funds
and that he coculd do better with the funds in U.&.s. than in
Canada. Aitken advised tﬁat permission of the Minisiry of
Finance was necassary which advice the appellant rejected and
suggested that a pri?ate acceunt should be establiished instead.
One_bf the Liaison Ufficers in U.G.A. refused tc act on the
suggestion from Aitken that he should cpen this private account,
whereupon Altken accepted the fuither suggestion from the
anpellantc that he shculd open an account in his own name. The
appellant provided five of the U.5. $1,0U0.00 cashier's drafts
part of the $30,060.00 transaction in Cana&a for opening the
account. Over the pericd covered in the conspiracy count,
cheques for more than U.s. $500,000.00 were diawn on the
Jamaica Liaison Service aécounts in Canada in favour of Aitken
and were forwarded Lo him in Jamaica, or handcd vo him in
Canada or Miami. Altlhien lodged these funds partly in a savings
acchntv partly in a money market account and partly in a
current accouht at Credit BSuisse Banx inrﬁiami. Inve this
current account he once lodged U.3. $4ui.UC the property of

the sppellanc. approximately $2%5,.0006.00 recuived from W.i.C.L.0.

ag Retroactive Rate Credit, and money of his own amounting to

about U.L. %25 - 30.000.0GC,

suggeétion of the appellant who was made aware that the Zank
of Jamaica was particularly interested in Aitiken's holdings
overseus,. and who suggested that false returns be supplied to
the Eanik of Jamaica in which the Miami accounts would not be
disclosed. Moneys in the Miami accounts were to be maintained

for emergencies, insisted the appellant.
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and for U.5. $12,750.0¢ dated Lpril 1, 1982 were veguested
by Akitken from Edwards of W.I.C.L.C. to be forwarded to a
nawed bank in Belgium for ihe purchase of a motor car for

a2 Minister of Government. These checues were in Faci sent.

[ATH

Aitken sai that in issuing theserinstxuctions tC Edwarés

hé acted on the reguest of the appellantg- Indeed he gavé

to the appellant a further sum of U.3. $6,QG&,§& drawn on

the Miami accounts out <¢f the Csnadian funds, torcomplete”
tﬁe purchase., The appellant had explained to him that on

hiis understanding of the proposed Cabinet motorfcar pol;cy; it
would soon be impossible Lo impo:t_é MércedesQBenz inté
Jamaica and that the appellant would reimburse the Ministry
for the funds advanced from the farm-work programmes for

the pﬁrchasé of the Mércedes-Benz. The car arrived_in

Jamaica and the appellant pointed it out <o him on the

premises of the Minisitry of Labour, saying: "ihis is the
Benz™,

Another motor vehicle, a 1982 Tovota Land Cruiser

was purchased from Brimell Hotors Limited by Heron of the

[
it
o
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Canadian Liaiscon Office, on the instructicns of Al
from the Lanadian funds and was shipped 1o Jamaica to

the appellant. Altken explained that betwaeh 1981 ~ 15%&4
about twelve vehicles were importsd for the Ministry of
Labeour out of surplus funds in the Canadian programme.

These vehicles included a blﬁe Land CruiserAwhich was
cleared frbm;the wharf by a Hinistry officisl and painted

to designaie it &s a Ministry vehicle. So furious did

the appellant become that tnisuhad happehed, witen he had

& personal interest in %hat vehicleglthat he caused the
official, & Mr. Chattan, io be transferred from thé |
Ministry. Thic led Aithen to insirucht Hercon to purchaée the

Toyota Land Cruise: from Brimell.
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A third motor vehicle was requested by thé appellant.
Aitken said he was instcructed by the appellant to bring down
from the Canadian Farm-Workers Programme a Land Cruiser for
his use as a farm vehicle, so that it would not atitract customs
duty. In this regard, Eicken speke with Ruel Rhoden of Uni
#iotors, agents for Toyota in connection with the clearance of
this vellicle, and with Ernest Wynter of the Cﬁstoms Service,
Aitken said toou, that he gave instructicns to Heror in Canadza
to make the purchase and discovered then thai Heron knew all
about the proposal. Aitken instructed Heron to pay the
Canadian equivalent of 2,815,460.00 yen to Toyota's Bankers

\ =

in Toky® and these instructions were obeyed.

A Voice Pretection System was purchased from Motorola
incorporaced of Florida for U.S. $44¢,9006.00C out of the funds
in the Canadian Liaison Service accocunt. It arrived in
Jamaica, was cleared by agents of Ruel Samuels Ltd., and was
installed at two locations in Manqhester at .the direction oﬁ
the appellant whose initials were irscribed on portions of the
equipment. A&An insignificant and never used parc of Lhis
equiprment was installed in a motor car used by a senior
cfficial of the Ministry of Lebour. Aitken said that he
required, for the purposes of the Ministry of Labour; equip-

ment to monitor the movement of Ministyry vehicles, &

proposal endorsed by the appellant. BRe therefore ordered

from Motorecla eguipment valued at U.S8. $13,%00.065 but
received information from Canada that the bill presented to
the Liaison Service in Toronto by Moﬁorola amountced to
U.S. 546,90{3.00° He then_éiscus;ed the matter with the
appellant  who admitted that he had enlarged the order.
Altken gave instructions to Heron in Torontc to pay.

Litken maintained an account for the Kanagement
Committee at the Bank of Hova Scotia, Scotia Centre, Kingston

funded with chegues freom the Retrozactiive Rate Credit which
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cucht properlv to have been lodged te the account oi the
Ministiy of Labour. From this account Aitkeﬁ made payments
in respéct of funeral expénﬁes of deceasecd fazm—workexé}‘
The appellant told Aitken that he owned a company called

Rapid FEepairs and Haintonanca Services and on th?ee occasions

[43]

the aépellant' reguested payment on behalf of that company
frow the Management Comittee's Account. on the first
occasion payment was wmade for work done on the Hlni ry;é
premiges., On two other cccasions Bitken was told to "get
money reaay for kapid™. WHo bill wag presented ¢y the
appeliant butc chegues éﬁawn cn the Management Committeé’s
account were pLep*"ed and delivered to the appe.lant at a
time when no work therefor had bLeen done by Rapid. |
Subséquéntlyj said Aitken, work of a shabiy natire was
attempted at 1¥ Eagt Street,

aitken said that between 1901 and 1946 the appellant
received approximately U.S5. 8131,009.00 out of ﬁ,I;C.L.O;:
funds and approximately U.8. $183,000.06 out of the fbnash
of the Jamaican farm-work pregramme in Canada in cash and
chegues. The established system for these payments was for
the appellant to dewmaend from Aitken stated sums irn cash or

chegues especially on the occasions when the appellant was

cravelling overseas. The appellantis standard instructions,

1}

of ten repeated, were that the appellant's naae should not
appear on any documents in connection with these payments.
Fou yeare, Altken said, he faithfully complicé with these
instructions but latterly, he made chegues payablé to

*J. Smith", *J. A. Bmith", J. A. G..Smith”” encloseé each in
an envelope and handed the sealed envelope to the appellan:
at the very lasht nomenti béfore his departure from Jaﬁaicah

sc as to avoid the envelope being opensed in his presence.
Over the years money was paid to the appellani in Hiami,
Toronte, Geneva and éamaica. Some of the payments in Jamaica

feim the basis of ccunis 3 - 7.
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The blandishments and veiled threats resorted to.
by the appellant to whip Aitken intc conformity with his
desires were described by Aitken tc include zn allegation
that altken cwed his position as Permanent Secretary in that
Ministzry to the appellant’s Lenevolence; that fuitken was
unduly sensitive as {ormer politicians had enriched them-
selves to fovr greater degrees and there was no official
complaint: that with his double portfollo responsibilities
i.e. of the Ministry of Labour and the Ministry of the
Public &ervice, the appellant cculd effect transfers of even
the most highly placed public officer "without a ripple".
The appellant was impatient at what he termed "buck-shuffling”
on the occasions that Aitlken cautioned that there be
conformity with financial regulations and would descend to
vulgar language in rejecting hitken's requests for receipts

for the sums of wmoney which Aitken paid over to him.

Altken repeatedly professed in evidence that he considered

himself a trustce of the funds which had been hived off

from the Canadian account and put to the credit of accounts in
his own name ir Miami and willingly re-transferred the credit
Lalances anotaling to more thaﬁ J.8. $552,00C.00 to the
Canadian account in July 198%3.

Here we may leave sitken’s testimony and t{urn-to che
other principal prosecution witnesses., Cf the several other
witnesses who testifled for the prosecution none was more
emphatic than Ronan Critchlow. He had been promised the
appointment &5 Chief Liaison Gfficer in Torxronto, had made
extensive domestic arrangements for re-locating himself and

his family, but he was not confirmed in the posicion as he

incurred the apellant's displeasurc. ritchlow had the
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unpleasant task of persuading a Bank Manager .in Toronto on
December 4. 19¢l to open an account with the U.S., $50,000.00C
cheque maGe .paybale to the Permanent Secretary, which the
appellant and sitken had commandad him to negotiate and to
obtain cash and cashiex's chegues for the full amcount, thus.
closing ouc. the account.

srior o the 4th of Uecember, on a down-town
shopping expediticn the appellant identified ceritain house-
hiold appliances in a shop window and later addressing  Critchlow
szid: "Ronan, I would like to have the ‘fridge, washing machine
and dryer which we lcoxed at, in Xingston, to coincide with my
arrival when i get back®. Critchlow asked for the money to
¢ffect the purchase. The appellant directed him to purchase
them out of "the fund", which Critchlow undexrstood to mean
the operating funds of theLiaison Service. Critchlow refused
+o chey the instructions.

Critchlow tcld of how he was berated by the
appellant for failing to equip the house, he had bought. for
the use of visiting dignitaries, with a relephone and of how
ne had insisted upon receiving written .instructions.
from Ritken relative to the negotiation of the éheque.
However +that may be, on December 4, 1981, the appellant
announced to Critchlow that “this thing will not Jork out”
neaning that Critchlow's appolintment as Liaison Officer would
not be confirmed. To Critchlow's query as o what then should
he do, the appellant said Critchlew would have a role with the
programme which coul@ be fulfilled from Jamaica. Disappointed,
Critchlow returned home on Decembexr 7, 1981.

Noel Heron, a Civil Servant, has been assigned ‘Lo
the Liaison Service in Canadc since its inception in 13€& and

has been designated Chief Liaison CEficer since '1534. He
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Qescribed the legai framework of the Canadian Farm-Workers'
Programmme ané the tranzfer of the accounts from Ottawa to
Toreonto in 1981, % of each worker's wages is retained in
Canada as an Operaticnal Cess. Large sﬁxﬁluses were built

up and consequently the excess over current operational

expenses was placed in a savings account. Heron gave details
of the operation of the current account. 7t was funded through

(&) amounts received from insurance Companies for the benefit
of workers; ib) empleyers' deGuciions from wages and
{¢) insurance rebates. known as Ketroactive Rate Credits. A&t
the end of each month an insurance premiﬁmlbase& on the end of
month pecpulation in the programme, would be paild by the
Liaiscn Service to W.I.C.L.O., through whose agené§ the
insurance coverage was obtained and at the end of each seascn
the Retroactive Rate (redits, received through W.I.C.L.0U.
would be brought to the credit of whatever account the Chairman
of the Management Committee nominzied.

Heron on the written request of Aitken, who wrote as
Permanent Secretary, drew and cashed a chegue on the Liaisun

.

Service account for U.s5. $1¢

L

<

0C.00 which money he handed to

o

[

aitken in Mizmi on Hay 29, 135, ostensibkly to enuile the
Fermanent Secrecery to fund a computer project in the Miniscry.
iercn spoke of fiftecn speclific traisagtions, in «ll of which,
at Altken's recuest, a Canadian chegue was drawn and used to
purchas¢ 2 draft in U.5. dellars in the name of kitiien and
either posted to him, or handed to nim, at his option. Heron
could not recall and had no nete of the reason for the rsequests

made for chéeqgues drawn on:
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19~-1i-82 for U.Z. §$ 5,000.00

18- 3-83 " v $1C.000.00
e B33 i * 3 5,600,046,

However chegue dlsiwn on 22-7-83 for U.5. $30,000.00 was

ol

reyuested to "purchase necessary eguipment in U.S.A.° &n

chegues drawn ong

0= @~85 for $ 50,880.0C
25-30-83 “ $10G,00C.08
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were ail requested for “official purposes”.

L draft prepared in Aitken's name for U.&S. ¥278,000.03 on
23/7/84 and ancther for U.S. $1472,473.32 dated 5/10/57

were both the proceeds of Term Deposits which formed a rart.
cf the savings accounis of the Liaison Service and which

had matured and which on Aitken's instructions ware nos

O

renawed in Canadz. Heron produced chegues paid o VORYD

on Z3/1/C4 fer Cam, $11,745.30 and on 1/2/84 for

l"“

Zan. $3,378.58. Thers was one particular chegue for
.8, 514,.7B5.57, parv of the insurance rebsie received from

W.l.C.L.0. for the Canadian account, which on the instructions
¢f altken, Leroen held in Canada and handed it over to Aitkern.
darvld Bdawards, the Veteran Chief Liaison Officer of
W.1.C.L.0. recalled puying to a bank in Selgiwa U.5. $L3,200.00
in two cheques at the oral request of Aitken, later confirmed
in writing. and he produced the cancelled chegues and the
correspondence, g recalled teo, that an insurance rebaive

chegue cf U.B. $28,080.0C made payable to the Permanent

Secrelary was at hitken's request cancelled and re-igsuaed in



Altken's name. On an occasion when he was atrzending an
I.L.0. neeting in Geneva, Aitken reqguested money from the
W.I.C.L.C. account and Edwacds gave zhe necessary inst;ucticns
te his deputy in Washington to forward thie amount from
W.l.C.L.Oy's funds. Edwards identified the chegues for
U.5. 50,000,005 $3.600.46% and $2,0600.5C dyawn in favouuw
of Zitken un Vovenber 5, 1901, of which kitken had given
devailed evidence, and Bduards produced thoe copy letiter in
which was forwawrded the earlier cheque for U.5. $5¢.000.0C
made pavablc to the Permanent Sceretary. Edvards sadid he
satisfied himseli that all payrments made to Altken were on

behalf of W.X.C.L.S.'s purpuses.  He, however, thought Luat

Chairman

{«

Aitken had authority ag Permaheni jecuctiry ox .a
of the Regicnal Labour Loard to make the requests for mcney
which aAiitken 4id male.

Edwards testified that he had discussions with the
appellant about the payments made from the 1% emplovers®
contribution and the Retrouctive Rate fund. The appellant
discussed with him finznces gene:ally and asked Bdwards to
inform him of payments made either to or through Aivken.
Accordingly Eawards woote Lo the appellent on
Fepruasdy 23, 1782 detailing paymenis Lo kitken amouniing to
U.8, $112.3500.00. X copy of the let.er was admitred in
evidence. Hatvken had vestified ihat he had teold che appzllant
on hus return from wWashington that he hrd obtained
UoB. $5,000.08 on his own behalf. To that ine appellant had
said chat he knew as he nad roeceived a letter from W.I.C.L.0.

0 that effect and added:. “Men like BEdwards want all for

chemselves uné do not wnow how o live zand lev live®. it

e

is reascnable to infer thei the letter of which the appcllant

e

spoke was that of BEdwards of Feo

3]

uary 25, 15%&

i

3

w
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aitken it is to be recalled said that the representa-
rions which he made +o Edwards to obtain the twe chegués of.
550,000.00 each were false t¢ his knowledge. He said he had
told Edwards the plausible reason advanced by the appellant
for the first $50,0030.006 chegue and in conversation with
Rdwards,; he had tolé him that the appellant had directed that
the earlies chegue ke put on hold, and that $50-000.00 in cash

Le obtained in

U)

‘place and that for his second riguest
tiwe appellant had advanced no additional reason.

Gcher significant evidence adduged by the Crown came
from Robert Brunnett, President and Manager of Riggs Naiional
Bank in Washington. :He tescified that $,1,C.L.0. s account
was debitred to the tune of about $1{3,000.0C represented by
the geveral chegues identified by Edwards. Then Brunnett
went on to say that from his training and experience be could
interpret certain nctations appearing. on cheques . drawn on the
Creditc Suisse Sank of Miamsi, Florida, a bank with which he had
no connection whatever. Xe was shown-cheques, which were in
evidence as exhibits ¢4~52, and opined that in cach case tue
account was debited. On che evidence of Aitken zaven of thosé
cheques were endorsed for encashment by the appellant. Of
course ne evidence was, led to contradiot this asseriticon.

4 Toyota Land Cruiser was orderad by the appeliant.
from United Motors Lid. and upon itg arraval in Jmaarca, il
was clesred through United Motors. The importer was shown
0 be Hector's River Farms, a company of which the appellant
is a Direcior and sharcholder. The appellant who had
communicated divectly with the Menagemeni. of United Hotors

in tespect of this ¥ehicle refllsed to pay the dealer’s

commission.
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Ls to the eguipment from Motorola Corporation,

Mr, Hueller testified that the appellant Jiscussed with him
at Holiday Inn, Dreckle Points, Mianmi, the order for the
purchase of & Digital Voice Protection Communications system,
which Mﬁella: had received from the Ministry of Labour,
chiough Ruel Samucls Lid.; that he discussed the equipment
with the appellanﬁ at the home of Ruel zsmucls in Ringston;
fhatrhe received from the Ministry of Labour confiimztion
that the equipment was reqguired for use by the Government of

samaica; thet the equipment was gaid for through tihe Liaison

w

ervice in Canada. and thet the parts of the equipmnenc shown
toe him in Couirt conformed to that which he had supplied on
the appellantis order.

For the saie of completeness the prosccution called a
number of witnesses. Mr. Miller of Prestige Motors Lid.
processed an ordex_for‘a Mercedes-Benz 230 SE from Lthe
appellant in August 1981. This order was subsequently can-
celled as the‘appeliant told Miller that he haa.éct & better
deal through Belgium, a polint fyom which Mercedes~Benz can
e cobteined.

The appellant was at the material times a shereholder
and a Director of M.4.5. Ltd., the company which inswalled the

D.VL.F. syulpment obtained from Motorola. ie wes a sharcholdéer

[#)
(]
+, L]

Rap.c Repaii and Maintenance Limiced znd the holder of
2L:000 out i IZ9E 800 shares in Hector's River Farms L+a.
The officers of {he Minisiry of Lazbour who received the
Hotoroly equipment returned by the appellant alsc testified,
Anthony Irong, now Permanent Secretary in the Ministry
¢f Labour, having recuived a Report from the Auditor General,
spoke to the appellant on the telephonz and thereaftcr visited
nim at his office in June 1959, In the conversation which

-

=asued &l the appellant s office Irons gave the appellant the
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Irons. He QiG so on or before July li, 1%8% as on tha
day Moter Wehicle ﬁﬁrc;flc te of Title in respect of a 1982
Toyota Land Cruiser was transferred from the appellant in
whose name it had been registered to the Permanent Secrecary,
Mln‘SLIj of Labour.
In the course of the interview the appellant wished
to learn from Irons what was the gravamen of the Audit
Report., To this irons replied that Aitken would have tc
account for over Can. $506,000.00. At this the appellant
said words to the effect:
" But Tony, how can Prcoyn
account for that type of
money? Probyn can't
account for that type of
noney" .
A8 will be shown hereinafter, the learned Resldent Magistrate

rev inferences adversc to the appellant from this response

Police officers in the course of their iavestiga-
tions visited the appellanc's office on March 9, 1930 by
matual agreensnt. A brown Toyota Land Cruiser number 2966
was perked on the premises . Detective Lupt, Williuwmson

addressed the appeilant in the presence of his zutcrney

thus: o s .

*¥s that the vehicle that
wig ordered-frem Japan
through Unitoed Motors
for your™

He replied: U Yag T,

Having obtained the keve for the vehicle the police took

oy

possession of the Land Cruiser.



At an earlier meeting with thé appellant on
February 15, 1594, Det. Supt. Williamson cauticned the

and proceeded to

&

appellant in the presence of his atlornes

!-ql

ask him 177 questicns and aisc preduced for his inspaciion
and comment & variety of documénts. To each gueciion the

appellant’s reply was: “Ho comment”.

Efter the Crown had called tweniv~f.ve witnesses and

tendeared 122 oxhibits it closed its case. Dofence Counse

made a no-case submission in the coursge of which he intimated
that the defence ¢id not propose to adduce any evidence.
On July 2, at the clese of the legal submissions by the

defence and the prosecution the learned Resident Magistrate

-y
[

adjourned the hewring until July 19. then called upon
the appellant to answef 21l seven counts of Lhe indictment.
The defence formally restad onijnano~case submission
.wheruupon the Hesident Magistrate declined to hear further
submissions from the Crown but did notlfettay Defence Counscl
his final addiess, after which vefd;cts o guilty were
pronounced., ¢ Resident Magistrate irnposed sentences of
s

Th
FR S - . To oy e A Tn s ot e ety ey e i pe Tt v
imprisomment after bearing charncter evidonce. His commants

Prior Lo sentence nave foraed the baziz of ons of the ¢rounds

Je now tura te a consideration of the legal points
velsed. The first ground of appeal stated thot “the learned
trial judge foiled to give adeguowe considuration or any
censideration at all to the points of law raised at the
trial®. Particulars weﬁefsuﬁgliad covering three Gistinct

matters:



{a; that there was no iurisg-
diction for the learptd
Resgident Magistraie to
have tried the indiciment
for conspilvacy on count 1;

{»} ' that count i1 of the indict-
P“nt was bad for dupliciiy
in circumstances whegre it

alleged that two separate
‘and distinct institunlens
Ba‘;ﬂe.&.y thne Jamaican
Liaison Service,lanadia
?a:mmﬂ61A¢ra Frograne ana
the West indies (zniral
Labcur b_ganzgatioﬂ were to
be defrauded:

“e

tie {inding that the money
involved at the West Indies
Centrel Labour Organization in
Washingzon and the Jamaica
‘Liaison Service/Canadian

Fa m—WoLLsxs Frogramme in
Toronto was' the property of
the CGovernment of Jamaica was
an unreasonable finding which
cannot be supported having
‘regard teo the evidence.

-
G
Nt

At common law the 1nd1c cable misdemeanour cf conspliracy
is complete when tuo or more persons agree to carry into

effect a plot to do an unlawful act or to do a lawful act

Ly unlowful meuns. Willes J. in delivering the opxn;on
2f cthe Judges wo guoustions put to them by the Hou Of

.

Lorcs said cf the pature of conspiracy:

A conspiracy consisis not
‘marely in the intwenticn
o‘ tWO o7 moere, hut in the
agreencnt of ftwo or mors
to do an n‘awful act, or
3

1o do a lawfol mot Ly un-
lawful meuns. ... hen
Lwe agres Lo carry Lo inio

i
effect; the very plot is

an act in itself, and the
act of cach of the partics
promise against piromise,
actus contra actun,
capable ¢f being enforced,
if lawful, punishaple if
for a criminal orieci or
for the use of criminal
meazns® .

itinleahy v. Tha Juecn

(ICUE-T0) 34 ILURLH.L L.
304 at 32173
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The argument advanced by the wppellant was thav on the

aliegations contained in count } ¢f the indictment the

[

c¢hject or purposc of the conspiracy waz to obtain noney

(a3

outside of Jamaica. that is to say from kiggs Hational Bank,
Washington, U.&.A4. and koyal Bank of Canada. Toronto, Canada.
in those circunstances, it was argued, it was irrelevanc to

the jurisdicticnal question where the agreenent. was concluded

]

as the proper tust to determine lerrvivorial surisdictic
would be to ask the guesticn, if the conspiracy had bear

completely performed would the completed offence have been

L3

D

indictable in Jamaica® If no, then the alleged conspiracy

was not Liiable in Jameica.

.

e

<0

Bozrd of Trade v. Owen and ZAnother (19571 h.C.

decided that agreements, made in England, to commit crimes
or other unlawful acts out of the JurisGiction and in a

country where criminal conspiracy wss uninown to their law,

ie

did not amourit to indictable offences in Zngland. Lord Tucker

}.

explained& the reuascn behind this decision. He said:e

ae wist of the offence being

he sgrosment, whether or not

e ohject is attained, it

TAY be nsked why should it nor
wioindictakle L the object is

P N S . 1 . L &oan &
grilace auroad. I think the
:

INSWEr Lo Lhis is that it ig
necessay o raecognize the coffence
Te &ld in the preservation of

the Quoen’s posce and the
Barntenance of law and ordor

W i with which,

G tie cyriminal
I ned™,

He quoted at length frowm Vel. - of Baldswerth, History

| ¥
0
h

Engligh Law, and concludgad,;

“Accepting the abov
historical Losis of the crime
OL ConpLracy; it seems tro
e, that the whole obijaect of
making such ugyresments bpunigh-

able is to prevent vhe



- commission ¢f the substantive
offence before it has even
reached the stage of an
attempt and thatv is it all part
and parcel of the preservation
oL the Queens peace within
the realm. I cannor thereiore
accept the view that the
lecality of the wcts to be done
anG of the object to be zttained
are matters irrelevant to the .
criminality cf the agrcement.”

the law, dealing. as it Goes, witly

M

That statement o
#herlqcal jurisddction of the Court cver conspiracy. charges
at comﬁon law would be binding on the Courts of Jamaica.

To this extent we accept the submission of Mr. Phipps

that the law of Jamaica and the law Qf-England a2s auv the
date of Owen°s case, waa the gsame. It means therefore
that 1f the agreement is made in Jamaica, but the object of
the agreement is to defraud persons outside of Jamaica and
the acts in pevforinance of the agreemenit are carried out
abroad, the mere zgreement in Jamzica would be insufficent

Lo yround a charge of conspiracy to defriud.

cpen the guesclon whefher a conspivacy in England which was

Lo e wiwolly carried oue avroad could e indictable i

T

England upon pzcof that its perfoinance would produce a

[

public mischitd in Fngland or injure a perscn Lhere by

causing him damave abreoad. That reserved question was

setled in Jildrney CGeneral's Reference (Ho. 1 of 1982) 119831

¥

< A11 E.R, 721, where it was held that it was not enough to

show theat some incidental or conseguential loss was suffered

by third parties in England, in order to prove a conspiracy
to defraud where the true obliect of the conspiracy was *o

be committed abrocad. The applicable rule szid Loxrd Lane €.J.

15 ‘Lhis H
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"The real gues<ion must in
each case be what is the
true obiect of the agreement
entered into by the con-
spirators? ...... 1in each
caswe, to determine the cbiject
of the conspiracy. the
court must see what the
defencants actually agreaad
to do".

in that case it was found that the agreement was made in

]

Englanc, that false labels were prepared in Zngland for
Lransmisgion te Germany whoere they would be affixed to
bottles containing a large guantity of whisky and which
would be shipped to Lebanon for sale there passing-off as
the product of a repuitable Bnglish menufacturer. The object
of ihat conspiracy, the Court held, was to defrauvd
'purchasers'of the whisky in Lebanon, and only incidentally
would the holders of the copyright in the labels be damnified.
¥ho was the intended victim in the instant case? The
Government of Jamaicqy through cne of its principal
Ministries has negotiated programmes for the employment
vrerseas of Jamaican farm labourers. Tho Organization
W.l.C.L.C. in Washington acts as the Agent of the Govern-

+ -

rent of Jswmaica., Tt s not a pody created by stsiuce and aay

i
o

C\
o
}-.l
o
[

se tne funds of the Crganizatlon for the purposes

of the Urganization. If W.i.C.L.C. was dissoclved therec
could Le no guestion thec surplus funds would belong to the
Governments by which it was ectablished. W.3.C.L.O.
cperated.cn the basis that the Chairman of thé Regional
Labour Board could demand funds for use at the Ministry

of Labour in Xingston and that any payment it made to
Hinistry of Labour was for thﬁ welfare of the Jamaican
workers. When it is recalled that Jamaica's contribution

to the operation of the W.i.C.L.C. Scheme is conprised
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of compulsory deductions made from the workers' wages and
that this deduction is made in Kingston by the Ministry of
Labour, which then forwards the amonnc to W.I.C.L.0., it
becomes clear that alhnough the Government cf Jamaica has no

beneficial interest in the funds in the hands of W.I.C.L.O.,

tions on frust to use it for the sole

[
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G
]
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purpose. of the W.i.C.L.0, programme., Fdwards in his letter
to Aitken of Scuioker 21, 1981 enclosing the cheque for

U.0. 850,000,060 clesrly identifies the source of che funds.

" Thig amount is a portion of
the 1% contribution being held
G this offlce kefore trans-
mission to Jumzica on behalf of
Jamaican workeis”,
Aitkin's other reques: by 1ette: of Wovenoer 5, 1981 for the
U.S. $55,000.00 was from this same 1% fund.

The Cenadian Scheme was administered directly by the
Government of Jamaica through a Managementy Comnlt e¢e of
public officers and Liaison ufficers paid airectly from the

nsolidaied Fund with a “ropping up” from the operational
Ceso. The Governmenc of Jamaice had the clearest obligaticn
©o cause the Canzdian accouncs te be audiited by the Auditor

1

General who in fact audited these asewurits

8]

u

n

i

) to 15%3 sad

Yhese farm~ WOrk programnes are essen 1‘lly Government
Schemes, adwinistered entirely by the covermment in one case
and with a majorivy vete in the other case; Beneficiaries
in these Schemes had no voice whatever in the negoLluulon fcr
wages, in séftliﬁj the teims of *hu agreement or in d¢c1d1n
whether or not to contribute .o the Scheme. in our view

W.i.C.L.0. was the agenv of the Government of Jamaica in
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respect of the Jamaican farm-workers in the U.S.A. and of

thi .funds received from employers for the welfare of the
Jamaican workers. The agreement tendered in evidence clearly
identified Edwards as agent of the participating countiry.
The Jamaican Liaison Sesvice in Canada was undoubtedly an
agent of the Government of Jamaica for the administratipn
of the¢ Canadian Farm-Workers Programme in that counvry. In
ouy VLQW the funds in the Y.1.C.%.0. account which were ear-
macrxead fof trensmiozicn 20 Jamalca and ithe funds in the
Jamaicasn Liasson Seivice socounts in Canada fell withinlfhe
definition of "oublic noneys™. as being Tany trust oo other

noneys held whether tewporarily or otherwise, by an officer
. v p; X

fare

n his official capaciéy'eiuher alone or Jeintly wi;h any
other person, whevher afofficer or not.” Section 2(1} of‘
the F.A.A. Act. |

in our view the aim of the appellant ahd Aitken,
from their loifty positions of Minister of Labour and
Perﬁaneht Secretary;ﬁ1ﬁhat Ministry, was to bleed the funds
6f the farmwworkeré prograﬁmesaéminist&red by the Ministry
of Labour, as an integral pari of the Gavaxnment of Jamacia.
When-klpﬁrsuance of'fhis scheme fands were obtained from
either programme these were in our view bu: overi acts wichin

the conspiracy.

in B, v, Governor of Pent§nvil§g Prison ex parte Usman
1551 BAEIE E.R. Exéj nhe Divisional Court had to consider,
ingar éliah what was the LIve sbhdect of Lhe CONSpLiiacy, an@ <N
Th fﬁcts of thav case decided that it could net possibly Le
said that the logs of the Hong Ronyg wank was only "a side
éifect or incidencal conseguence” of tﬁe_conspiracy. It was,

the Court held, the whole object from starc to finish.



“The Hong Xong Bank (5.M.F.L.) would in che course of

o]

business issue a dealing ticket in Hong Kong for the amount

O
b
9}

pafticu1ar 16aﬁ; follcwéd by a confirmatiocn slip,
Thereofter b, M.FP.L. would send & Lelex instruction to its_
correspondent bank in the United States. authorising the
transfer of funds to the Carrian gréﬁp’s correspondemn bank
in the United States. That bank woﬁléiiﬁ tusn transfer the
funds to the larrian group’s account iu Hong Keong. Before
cuthorisirg the telex insiructicn B,M.F.L. enzured theb iﬁé
corresponden: bank in fhe United Sta.cs was.in funds. On
issuing the telen instruction from Hony Kong itherae wag no
further act required to be done by EOM?F.L, for the funds
to be transferred to the accoﬁnt of the Carrian gﬁéup.
although these facts are COmplﬁteiy different froun
the facts in. the insvant case we derive assistanc: from the
approach ¢ kén'by the Court bf A@paaikiﬂ détéfmlﬂing the
object fuestionn Ths érgﬁment for Coman was £hat the true

object of the conspiracy was to deprive B..F.L. of dollars

&

in the J.3.

k.
B

-

nd consequently on the autherity of the

i P

Attorpey General’s Reference fic. I of 15LZ, the congpiracy

W88 not trisbio in Hong Yong where the conupilratorial
agreemoant was made. Tliis arguﬁent wWas summarily-iejec£éd
wher the Jourt held that the chiect of ithe CONnspLracy vas
to defraud B.M,F.L. in ilong Xong, using the United States
banks as the means to acéomplish thar end. In our view in
the instant case thé obiéct of the conupiracy was to defrauﬁ
the Govermment’s fa:m-workers' progiammes administéﬁed by
the Ministry of Laboﬁr ané Ehe further activ.ties of Alcken

and the appellant were the means euployed o this end.



The learnsd Resident Kagistrate accepted jurisdic-
tion to tiy the conspiracy count on thes zdditional basis
ihat overit acts n furtherance of the agreement were commiti
in Janaica, In conspiracy cases a problen ari
acte or omissions constituvting the offence take place in
mor=2 than oune country, for a Court to delsimine whicsn

countyy has Jurisdiction te try the case. This difficulty
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wWas recogniz uu by the Court in Osman's come. ¢ of

>

Loxds in D.P.P. v, Dog. (1¥TH] A.C, &07 held that censplracy

was a continruing offence. Viscount Z.ilbhorne sald at

p. 823 thats

If£ it is; ad in my opinion it
ig, a contlnulng offence then
che courts of England,. in my
view, have jurlsdiction to

try the offence if, and only
if, the evidence suffices to
ghow that the conspiracy whan-
evey or wherever it was formed
was in eéxistence when the
accused were in England. Here
the acts ¢f the respondents in
Englanc, to which i have
reforred, suffice o show that
they were acting in concert

in pursuance of an exi,tung
agreement To import cannabis,
to shew that there vas vl
within the - &

cladious “n

R
y oy - e [,
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And at page 2% of the Toport, Viscount LDilhorae added:

Yy conuiuvsion to which i
NEVE COTE o.o-0. £8 chEl
though the offence of
conspiracy is ccrnhlete whin
the agreement Lo do the
unilawful acit is made and it
18 not necessary for the
progsecution to do more than
prove the making of such

an agreementi. a conspiracy
voes not end with the meking
of the agreenrent. It continves
su long as the pasties to the
agreement intend Lo carvy it
cut. Lt may be joined by
othen s, some may leave it.

w
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Procf of ‘acts done by iho
accused in this country may
suffice to prove that the
wag at the time of those
accs conspiracy in
existence in this counitry to
which they were parties and,
if is proved, then the
charge of cong acy is with~.
ire the fdurisd:z on ¢f the
Englisj'cou; even though
the initizal

CEONENT WAS
made cucside thn turisdiction. ™
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#) the plor had

i

outside of Bngland and in p”rsunnce thereoi two wang with

-

cannabis concealed in :liem weve shipped frowm Merocce to

England conroute to ithe U.3.A. Because of the s tantinl
overt nois which:pccurred in England, the Courcl held that
those acts sufficed to establish the continuing exzistence
of the conspiracy. It is to be observed that the charge of

conspiracy to import cannabis was a discinct charge,

separate and apart from a charge of possession of cannabis.,

Overt acts in pursuance of the conspiracy can be

tieaied as prcoof of the sexistence of the conspiracy. &nd

2 are suff

™

if the overt acis in iciently substantial,

chey may go Lo prove
here, whatever might

1.

il £
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conso
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conspiracy which was

Sund

.
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r-o

fellows ithat
of that conspirac
in

of the ccunspiracy

from the Ministry of
when he w
in Jamalca, to

reguesting that sums

Vie have neld

ey would go o

the Jamaica

that the conspiracy was partly performed

nave been the ultimate aim of the

H

£ fthe

-

N

that the cblicct of ¢

ey, 4 4
3 ‘2—1:;(

Formed in Lhos was vo Jefrauwd the

by thz fravdelent wtilization of trust

Lis twe overseas agencies. It

1}

acts occuryed in Jamaica in

Jeamalca. wWhen Aitken wrot

*

Labour to #,1.C.L.0. reguesting

rote letters in Janaica and made telephones calls

n Liaison Service in Torentce
of money Lo transmitted to him, he was
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avowedly acting in pursuance of the conspirecy. The
functionarieé at W.I.C.L.0. and in Toronto did not, to
Mitken's knowléﬂge considur that they had any power to
refuse his dewmands for ainey,. so that the letters and
telephone calls from Kingston.were‘the directives ithrough
which the moneys were oktained. Motorola eguipment, and

wmoior vehicles purchased from the farm-workerd funds were

-

2]

received in amaica'by the sppellant ard sia
dispesal., His name was inscribed on the Motorola sguipment
and one cf the Land Cruisers was licensed in his name., in
our cpinion, the overt acts found by.the Resident Magistrate
ahd whose to which we have made reference herein would
provide a further basis for conferring jurisdiction on the
Jamaican Court to try count 1.

The appellant complained that count 1 of the ipdict-
ment was bad for duplicity as it aileged that two separate
and cistinct institutions, viz., W.i.C.L.C. and the
Canadian Farm-ilorkers Programme were to be defrauded. On
the evidence, W.I.C.L.0. had its own administration in
Washington and the Jamaican Liaison Service in Canada had
its separzte administration and whtreas thers was co-
Gpwration between the two administrations in rlacing

insurance for farm-woriers, they kept separate accounts.

-~

The link which we have found is +hat provided by ihe
Hinistry of Labour under which both programmes fall.

AU best these two Crganizacions are ad hoc cormitiees
Puisuing governmental funciions a5 agents of the Go%ernment,
and more especially of the Ministry of Lakour. We think
Lhat as the conspiracy was te defraud the fafm*worker§V
Programuies over which Aitken exercised executive control
the fraudulent dealings with the funds were bui overi acts
in furthecance of the conspiracy. On this basis we foung

no merit in the complaint as o duplicity in the count.

W 4L LLE REATIUS1vVe
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Counts 2 - 7 of the indictmenﬁ.alleged £hat the
appellant received in Jamaica variocus sums of ﬁoneyy
contrary to section 46(4) of the Lavceny Act. Ground 2
of the Grounds of Appeal complained that the Resident
Hagistrate failed to consider adguately or at all, the law,
as it relates to the several recelving counts. In the
suppcriing particulars it was said that the Resident

s juriséiction to try an offence under section

o

Magistrat

“elu) ‘of the Larceny Act was limited by section 26%(1)(b)

‘s
ot

of the Judicature {Resident Magistyates) iut to those cfiences

committed within his territorial jurisdiction. It was said

further, that {li=re was no pioof:

ke

) that the property received
as alleged in count 2 had
in fact been oktained by
misdemeanour and this to the
knowledge of the appellant;

(i1} that the properiy received
a3 alleged in counts 3 - 7
had in fact been obiained
by felony and tnat the
appellant knew that it was
S0 obtained.

Section it of the Lerceny Rot in sub-section 1 provides
for the generality of recelviny propeciy Lnowing it to have
been obtained in clrcumstances amounting tec felony or mis~ -
demeunouy and provides a penaliy. Sub~section (2) of that
section provides a peﬂalty for knowingly wreceiving “any mail
bag, postal article, chattel,; money or valucble cecursity,

the stealing, taking,.embezzling or secreting, whereof amounts
o felony.

Then comes sub-secticn {4) which rovides:

[ L3

bvery person who, wiihout lawful
€xcuse, receives or has in his
possession any property stolen or
chbtained outside the Island,
Apowing it to have been stolen

or obtained in any way whabsoever



Yunder such circumstance; that
if the act had been committed

in the Island the perso

committ;ng it would have been
guilty of feleny oi misdemeanour,
shall be guilty of an cffence of
ihe like degree {(whether felony
QY mistﬂe"uoul,, and on con-
viction thereof liabple to In~
prigoament with hard labour

for any term not exceeding seven
vears ©.

an offence under ihiis sub-section is undoubtecly triable

S‘

in a Zircuit Court by Judge and jury. Mr. Phipps has argued
that the Clrcuit Court is the oniy court bero’e which such an
cifencs is corn;aab ¢ having regacd to tiie provisions of
section 268(1){b1 of the Judicature (Resident Magistiates) Act.
The Resident Magistrate’s Court i3 a Court of limited
jurisdiciion. The venue jurisdiction of cach such Court is
limitedto & single geogra@hical perish in Jonaica with

limived cztension of one mile into an adjoining parish.. 1t

is extended by section 5 of the Criminal Justice (Administra-—

tion) Act - see R. v. York and Wynter [197%: 25 W.I.R. 490 at

454. But even w;;h‘n that geographical beundary, the Resident
Magistrabe $ Court Goes not have jurisdiction Lo try all

criminal cffences committed therein. Section 2

&
fea)
o

[
[
jo g
[t

jurisdicticual statute enumerates the several cifences wvritwle
by Residen: Magistrates. From the Offences Against the Person
aCt are excluded murder, murslzughter and all folonious
injuries. Felonies uhder Che Forgery hct nre similavly
excepted. Under the Lh*ceﬂi Lice elfences of stealing a Will
©itle to land; originzl Court Records; a mail bag cr ihe
can;ents.thurafrom; cextain fwaucs by trustees and company
irectors; ete.: are no* triazble by Resident Magistrates
in that they are omitted from ihe cnumeraztion in section 2%9
(1){b). In sum, a Resident Hagisirate's Court opuerates in
a defined area and bhas jurisdiction over such criminal offences

in thal area as are prescribed by suatuate.



Section 4¢(4) removes any argumeni as to venue
Jurisdictien in relation to the place at which the principal
ofiegnce waé committed, I nékés the receiving offence
trizkle in Jamalica i¥ acéording o Jamaican law the cct of
acquiéition was felonious or cmounted Lo o MiSCEmMCanouy.
Section 297Y of the Judicature {Rosident Magistrates)] Act
determings the geogr.phical venue for the trial of cffences
by Resid#ﬁt Hagistreces whercas section 2028 gnumerates the
criminal offencesz which such Resident Magistrales roy try.

Secceion 268(1){b) by the use of vhie limiting phrose
"where ihe stealing or obtaining of che propeity the subject
of the charge is within the jurisdicﬁion of such Cousis"
dees not clothe the Resident Magiscrate s Couxrt with power

ion

¢t

to hear &ll cases of recéiving_or obtaéining under sec
£6{(4}. What is excludeﬁ, in our ﬁiew, is receiving or
dbtaining goods the proceeds of a principal offence which is
nqt itéeif triable in the Recident Magisicate’ ; Court. if
the éheft had Leen from a mail beg, or of o Will, cffences
not within the j@risdiction of the Residenl Meglsirate, ?h&
receiving would also not be triakle within ics jurisdict;oﬁ.

)

in section 288{1){bj of sccuicn 46{L}

&

To give the raference
of ihe Larceny Aet. avy other interpretation, would he to
ronder the provigion medaninglicss.

The oppellant complained that thera was no proof ihat
the pzoperty received s alleged In count 2 had in face been
chtainaed by uisdemcanouf andé wliat thes appellanc knew that
this was zo obtained. Hithen's evidence is Jhiat the |
appellant said he had a need for the expenditure of about
U.5. $50,0006.6¢ Zn and around the Min.ostry of Labour and

vitken should requesi tha*t money fieom W.I.C.L,G. Aitken

rt
tu g
»
o
P;4

Occvober 15, 1%wi, on oificizl puper and signing himself as



Permznent Secretary and Chairman of the Regional Labour

Board confirming an earlicr telephonce conversatien in which
the reyuesr fovr U.&. £5G,0¢0.00 had been made. Becouse the
cheque in response to that regurest was made payable Lo the

Permanent Secretary, Minigtioy of Labour, Aitken nade & second

epproach to the Chief Liaison Officer for o further gum of
g.g. SSG,GGG.SG‘in cash. #fitken said he made the request
&t the insisténce of the aépellant. _Edwards_ the Chief
Lialson Oficer, zaid he issued chegques toﬁalling

U.8. 3335,000.00 on Hovemper 5, 1%C: made payable to Altken.

He explained hos understanding of the relationship betwcon

Hei .C.L,O, and 2ithen thuss

"The moverent of funds in the
account weuld be under the
diveection of the Chairman of
the Board. Everytime he gave
directions for chegues vc be
arawn it was within the scepe
¢f his authority’.

Later to the direct question in cress-egamination the

tile following evidencs was eliciitecd:

i
45

Did you ever become aware
that Myr. nhitken might have
been tuking funds cther
than for the organiza-
vion’s purposes?

B Ne Sir. vhatevsay chogues
I had drawa on instruotions

GE My. Rithien, I had salis-
fied mvsell that the
on behall of the or

L
TICH™ B LUrpLsoes .

The reasonuble infercnce Lo be arawn fiom Rdwards’
evidence s thalt Aitken Lolé him of :the ﬁurposcﬁ for which
the funds were required. Aitken said he explained to Edwards
that =ha appellant roeguired U.S. £50,030.68 in cash and
that tie appeliant had not given any further reason for thai

requesil, opart from the earlier one <hat he needed che neney



for work

advanced to
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alse precences made by Al

Tha reason

e “"bouss" wished
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nougshi for Edwards

cur view ithe

-~

gning the letters

5, phone conversa-

and dHovember I

tement wade in Washington were the

vken which induced ana:os te part

ith the chegue wh;ch, wiien anmshea produced the
U.S. $50,000.00 the subject of count Z. Hot cnly did the
appellant know of the falsc reprehent tations to be made by

Arntk

thoughts.

Mr. Phipps relied

on ratio
119857

Ft

i

Wit iR cl:razning

elling them to

3 All B.X.

en but on AlLken s evidence Lo was the fath=z of thos;

for his submissions on this ground,

of Divectur of Public Preosecutricns v. Hieser

bz at Cub where Diplock J. saids
“On the other hand
sufficient merely to prove that
the receiver knew that the pro-
perty fell into the wider
cetaguny of property which hag
Leen dl honeu.ly obtained, for
that is equally consisbent with
an errcuecuy belief that the
property was obfcined_in cir-
Crmst alicues Vvl-.-.. Y 1 anoent to
felony znd corseguently fall

it is not

_L [

gnect of cotablishing hat
deguee of xpowledge of the
general category nto whicn
the property fell VL_L we feel
compclised Lo hald an’
essential ingredienf of the
wffence chuxged®.
lieser's case thz principal offende; acted on her
& Talevision Set &nd a Refrigerator and Lhen

Hicser., Yhere was no eviuience tc show that

tioger wag part of the scheme o obtiin either axticle and
3¢ knew the means used to so obiain thew. Here the prosecu-
vion is waying that uhe appollanc wns whe gnstow-ging and
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aitken his hand-maiden. When. the puppet-master regquired
money &Aitken danced to his specific tubg. e do not think

that anything in R.P.P. v. Hiescr (supra) can aid the

appellant, against whom the prosccution brought evidence

-

of -active participation throughout, with tespect to counts 2 - 7.

{1

An inportant issue for determinaticon in respect of

coevnts 3 - 7 is to whom d¢id the monéy belong which was in the
Iliami account ar the Crodit Sulsse Banik. 2itken said he
helid it as & trustee for the Governmznt of Janzica. We have
held that the accounts at the Jamzican Liaison Service in
Canada were Government fgndsF that is to say, moneys held

in trust by the Government for welfare of farm-workers in
Canada. Aitken wag-ac all material times 2 servant of the
Government of Jamaico and did not cecse to be so when he
chaired a Management Committee established by Goverrment to
administer this programme.

Aitken's assertion that the funds standing in his own
name in the bank at Credit Suisse Miami, were being held by
him as Zrustee for the Government is credible. On the
evidence the conspirevors intended to dip into the fundas
frem time to time, usling such nethods as world not set off
“alnrm bells®, The fact that o Liajizon Officer in Miami had

bee¢n approached to hald and menage the funds hived off from

'}

anaca suggests that thers was no immediate intention to

1)
i

el

appropriate the funds so Yransferred., Two extremaly large
sums of woney, representing the major savings of the
Canadian programme were paid to Aitken when the deposits in
whech they were invested, matured. A l1ll this was recorded
in Canada and no specific reason was given to Heron for the

transmission ¢ Altken of those funds. Loth sums were

ledged o savings accounts in Miami and were made aveilable



which were withdrawn at cny one time from the Miami account
over the vears, svggests that the account was net being
operioted as an account ovaer which Aitken had sole beneficial
interest.

“On the agsumptiocn that there is credible evidence to
prove the censpivacy, it ‘s unlikezly that the sppellant
would have placed himself in a positiorn where he had no
dirazct contsrol of or over the funds but rather enabled

inancial position

i

iis co-conspirater to be in'an enviable

b

in hard currency. Of course on the cvidence of Edwards,
the appellant kept himself infermed. In our view ihe
inescapable inference ¢¢ be drawn from the operation of ihe
Miami accounis is that the funds which were paid directly
to nitken from the Torcnto accounts remalned and were in-—
tendud to remain funds of Lthe farm-work programme under

the trusteeship of the Government of Jamcica. altken was,
a8 he said, acting as agent of the Geovernment of Jamaica
when he opened and operated the currént account at Credit
fulsse. There was evidence that on occasions withdrawals
were made from this account for official

to defray expenses for overscas officisl delegation.

Tihen the uppellant requested Aithen to 4

Miami accouht for the appellantis purposes, the appellant
inew that for hirken to comply, Aitken weuld eithur have

te commit the felony of larceny as & sérvant or embezzlement
in order to comply with his reques®, &s the Miami funds were
part of the Canadian farm-werkers' funds. On this basis

we are of the view that the' presecution led evicence

capable of proving ail the essential ingredients of

receiving charved in counts: 3 — V.
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Ground 73 must be set cut fully. It complained

that:

+

The evidence of the conspirator,
Probyn Aitken was not admissible
agalnsL the ap;ilanu at che
triul to prove the existonce of
the conspiracy., ithere being no
independent evidence of the
cverall conspitracy.

The learned Resident Magistrate
admitted the evidence of '
Frobyn Aitiken on the sole busis
of zccomplice evidence and then
Proceeded to use it as proof of
the existence of the conspiracy
without deciding wihether or notil
there was other evidence in the
cise to ¢stablish such conﬂ
spiracy in order to make the

vestimony, acts and declarations
of Probyn hitker admissible
against the appellant.™

As we understand ity where two persong are engaged
in a common enterprise, the acis and declaraticns of one in
pursuance of that common purpose are admissible against the
other. HMr. Phipps submitted that there must be independent
¢vidence of the exisience of the conspiracy irrespective
of the time in the course of the trial at which such

evidence was zdduced. - On the authority of R. v. Donat

4 PG -~ - . . . - - . - 5 . “
(198G, 82 Cr. 4pp. R. 173 and k. v, Governur of Pentonville

Prison, ex B.isupra) we agree that there myst always be

sume evidence, ovher than the hearscy evidence of a fellow
conspirator to Prove that a particular defendant is a party
Lo a conspiracy.  Pro ided, uowever, that chere is sSome cther
evidence,; it doesg not matter in which order the evidence ig

adduced. ¥We use ‘Hearszy' in the sense that the matters of

which the conspiraior gives evidence were done and said in

the absence of rhe other conspirator(s),



. We have had occacicn to refer earlier to the
evidence of Critchlow concerning the instructions he was
given by the appellant to change the U.8. $50,003.6¢ cheque
nace pavuble o the Permanent Eecretary;-to the appcllant’s

directions i him to purchase household eqguipment cut of che

farm~worikers' fund: and of the appellant discordine him as
= ot

i

Chief Liaison Officer orn ihe appellant's perception that
Critichlow weuld not tamely dco his bidding, The evidence
which relutes to the lLand Cruiser registered in the appellant's
name, inscribed with Lhe appellant's iniiials, to the
Motorela eqguipment togeiher wich Critchlowis evidence
provided ample corrcberation foo Aitken's Lestimony that there
was an overall conspiracy to plundér the farm-workers
funds and that the appellant was a paﬁtlcipant thercin. The
import of the evidence of Edwards, that the appellant asked
him for a wriiten account of all moneys paid to cr through
Aitken, must never be over-looked as more than anything elses
it discloses the appellant’s intimate knowledgé of aitken's
activities. On these bases we held that Aitken‘s evidence
was admissible @guinst the appellant.

sn Ground 7 there was the complaini that the.Resident
Magistraie wrongly admiioeGin evidence various documents,
copy docunients and copinion testimony. We find thet

Robert Zrunneti; with 30 years experience ir banking at Riggs
Bank, Washington, with tlhree years prior treining in banking

. av Reuters Bchocl in Yew Jersey, had the expertise to

explain the weaning of bank stanps whicl appééﬁed on the
chegues drawn on %.I1.C.L.0O.'s account at Riggs'haﬁka ﬁdéh;ngLon,
We find too that from his knewledge of banking in thé several
States of the U.5.A. he was competent to inteipret the

notations on the chegues drawn by hltken con the Credii Suisse

ol
Ery

Ba in Miami.
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Aitken who had drawn cheqgues looked at micro-film

copies of the cheques and identified them as true copies of
the originals, There was no suggestion that any tampering

haa taken place in the course of the micro-filming. &Aitken
said that over o« peiicd of years he had moved house on.
several occasions and meny original documents including
cancelled chogues had been mislaid. In those ciyrcumsiances,
the best evidence evailable were the wmicro-film copies. The
absence of evidence from the individuals who did the micro-

filming did nol in our view render the copies, which were

‘authenticated by the sworn testimony of Aitken, inadmissible.

There was no direct evidence that the letter, Ex. 19,

itten by Edwards and addressed to the appellant was ever
received by him. It was admitted for the li.mited purpose
of showing that Edwards had acted upen the appellant’s
request. fven if this was an insufficient reason for the
acémission of Ex. i% the appellanc could net in any way be
prejudiééd as Edwavas had giver oial evidence of the
appellan?‘" request for the specific information.

“3

Grounds IV, V and VI all relave to the conduct oif the

ny

learned Resident Magistyate wnen hie finnlly disposed of the
cagé. Firstly. in ruling that there was o case Lo answey,

he did not give any veasgons. This iz the approach sanctioned
Ly this Court. Having ruled that there was & case to answer,
the lecrned Magistraite decided not to call upon ithe Crown Lo
zddress him a second time.

ne Judicature {(Fesident

54
©.

Section 28612} of

Magistirates) Act provides thait at the clése of the prose-

cution’s case on a trial on indictment, the Resident Magistrate

shall enguire 1if Cthe accused intends to call evidence foxr



e

w§ G

ihe defence and if Counsel decides not to do so, the
Residen: Magistrate shzll . enable Counscl for the prose~
cution to address him a second time to sum-up his ¢case and
te allow Counsel for each accused to réply. This sub-
secticn does not specifically give Defence Counsel ihe
right t¢ make submigsions at the end cf the prosecution's
cagse, ‘but the Jamaican practice is for the defence to make
full submissions on the law and the evidernce al that stage .
if it is desired tec submit that the prosecution has not
made out a piiwa facie case. © in the instant case, the
defence intimated in the course of its nc-case submnission -
that however the Magistrate ruled, the defence would not be
adducing wny evidence. Consequently when the prosecuticn
replied to the defence submissions it would be ezpected Lo
Geal with all relevau. questions of law and fact relied on
by the defence and generally. When later the Resident
Magistrate indicated that he did not wish tu hear a second
speech from the prosecution, 1f the Crown hnad any new ar§u~
ment to place before the Court, one would have expected the

learned Direcwor of Public Prosecutions so to indicate,

i

©

Je¢ do not accepi the argument of Ceunsel for the
appeilant that ithe Magistrwee domonstraoted by not reqguiring
& second speech from the proseculion that he @g&,already
made Up nis wind to convict although the case was not then
completed. The Fagistrate mighl have felt that 2 strong
prima faclie cose had been made out which could now have
been improved uvpon by the prosccution, having regard to
their full ecarliey submiissions. lndeed we¢ are inclined to
think that without a seconé speeck from che proseculion,
the defence was given a real advontage to Loy Lo persuade
the Resident Mogustrate not to convict notwithstanding

his ruling as to a prima facie case. In his rulings in the
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case and in his patience in trying a difficult case over
& long periocd of time, the lezrned Resident Magistraie
exhibited commendable judicial balance. We sre satisfied
that tvhere is no merit whatever in the submission thal
there was 2 pre-mature determination cf this case.

in passing sentence a trial judge is enticled to
comment upon cny extraordinary festure in the conduct of
the case which will impact upon the vype of s¢nuence. Lo be
imposed. ‘Complainzjis mede of ihe following remarks of

the learned Resident Magistrate,

"His conduct emanated from an
excess of greed znd was
fueled by whuat must have been
4 supremc feeling of contempt
‘for the Governmeni. of which
he was a parst and for the
Pacple of Jamaica.

it may ke fair io say that he demon-
sitrated this same contuapt towards
fe Judicial System of this country:

1. By his attitude when
uestioned by Super-
intendent Williamsorn.

]

{"Ho comment® to some
177 questions) and

Hig refusal to answer

Lo the chuzrges on which

he wes indicted, “This
however, is his privi-
lege zand his right in law".

[\
3

These wexe very strong comments bui in ocur view
it cannci be fzivly inferred that the learned Magistrate
drew adverse inferencres wgulnst the eppeliant due to Lis
failuie to co-operate with the pulice and to give evidence
¢n his own bohalf. At all matezial times the appellant
was being advised by his attorneys~at-law, and the Mogisg--
tiate acknowledged Chat facl in his comments. Against a

furner Cabinet Minis+ter the wmost horrendous charges were
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nade and he wlecied to stand on his constitutional rights
to remain silent in the face of the accusaticn and not to
say one mumbling word. The Magistrate said and he meant |
0 convey that not one single mitigating factor had been
advanced én behalf of the appellant other than his previous
good character and in consequenceé the appellant would have
to suffer the utmost coassquences. On the evidence and
having regard to the conduct cf the defence, we can find
nu fault in the firm stance addptéd'by the Resident Magistfate;

A sweeping-up ground of appeai was added v:rlz;.,r n
that the verdict was unceascnable and unsupported by the
evidence. We did not think for the reasons we have
advanced on the szeveral individual grounds hereirn, thart
there was any merit in that ground.

48 we earlier indicated we dismissed the appeals
against convictions., and reduced the scntences on the
receliving counts. as we found no merit in the grounds so

-ably argued by €ounsel for the defence.




